ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 17, 2006
3:33 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Pete Kott
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawf ord

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representative David Guttenberg

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 477
"An Act relating to charitable gam ng."

- HEARD AND HELD

SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 51

"An Act relating to nodifying the qualifications required for
wor kers' conpensation self-insurance and permtting enployers in
the sane trade or industry to form an enployer association for
self-insured workers' conpensation coverage; and providing for
an effective date."

- MOVED CSSSHB 51(L&C) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 227
"An Act relating to the Alaska Small Loans Act; and providing
for an effective date."
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 477

SHORT TI TLE: CHARI TABLE GAM NG
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KOTT

02/ 13/ 06 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 17, 2006



02/ 13/ 06 (H L&C, FIN

02/ 24/ 06 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
02/ 24/ 06 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

03/ 17/ 06 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 51
SHORT TI TLE: EMPLOYER ASSN FOR WORKERS

COWP | NS

REFERRALS

REFERRALS

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MEYER

01/ 10/ 05 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 05

01/ 10/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -

01/ 10/ 05 (H L&C, FIN

01/ 18/ 06 (H SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
01/ 18/ 06 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -

01/ 18/ 06 (H L&C, FIN

02/ 10/ 06 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 10/ 06 (H Heard & Held

02/ 10/ 06 (H M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 06/ 06 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 06/ 06 (H Heard & Held

03/ 06/ 06 (H M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 15/ 06 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 15/ 06 (H <Bill Hearing Postponed to 3/17/06>
03/ 17/ 06 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

M KE O HARE, Staff

to Representative Kott

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:
Representative Kott.

Spoke on behal f of

JEFF PRATHER, Gami ng G oup
Juneau O fice

Tax Divi sion

Depart ment of Revenue
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT:
guesti ons.

During hearing

LARRY MEYERS, Deputy Director
Tax Divi sion

Departnent of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE

t he sponsor

of

HB 477,

of

HB 477,

answer ed

March 17, 2006



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing of HB 477, answered

guesti ons.

ROBERT LOESCHER, Vice President

Juneau ANB Canp 2

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 477.

STEPHEN BORCHERDI NG, Ceneral Manager

Gol d Cache Bi ngo

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns with HB 477.

JACK PONERS
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns with HB 477.

GREGORY PETERSQN, General Manager

Al aska | ndoor Sports Distributing

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 477.

LI EUTENANT JAMES HELGOE

Di vision of Al aska State Troopers

Department of Public Safety

Sitka, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns with HB 477.

M KE PAW.OWBKI, Staff

to Representative Kevin Myer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented SSHB 51 on behalf
Representati ve Meyer, sponsor.

LI NDA HALL, Director

Di vi sion of Insurance

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity, & Econom c Devel opnent
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during hearing on SSHB 51.

PAUL F. LI SANKIE, Director

Central Ofice

Di vision of Wrkers' Conpensation

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during hearing on SSHB 51.

of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- March 17, 2006



ROBERT VOGAL, Vice President of Operations, G oup Manager

Pro Group Managenent, Inc.

Carson City, Nevada

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during hearing on SSHB
51.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

REPRESENTATI VE PETE KOTT, ACTING CHAIR called the House Labor
and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 3:33:18 PM
Representatives Kott, Lynn, Rokeberg, and Crawford were present
at the call to order.

HB 477- CHARI TABLE GAM NG

3:33: 50 PM

ACTING CHAIR KOIT announced that the first order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO 477, "An Act relating to charitable
gam ng. "

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to adopt CSHB 477, \Version 24-
LS1696\ G  Luckhaupt, 3/3/06, as the working docunent. There
bei ng no objection, Version G was before the conmttee.

3:34:26 PM

M KE O HARE, Staff to Representative Kott, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, speaking on behalf of the sponsor, paraphrased from
the followng witten testinony [original punctuation provided]:

This bill is an effort to ensure that crinmes wthin
the charitable gamng comunity are investigated and
prosecuted fully and passionately.

Many of these charities effected by these crinmes are
di scouraged by the results of investigations and |ack
of prosecutions of these cases in the past.

HB 477 changes Al aska Statute 05.15.010, requiring the
Department of Public Safety to investigate theft and
the Attorney CGeneral to prosecute these crines.

Thi s requi r enent Wil | hopefully deter crim nal
activity associated with charitable gam ng and keep it

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- March 17, 2006



clean, and all of the <charities wll get their
rightful share of the proceeds.

HB 477 al so adds provisions to the existing charitable
gam ng statutes AS 05.15 that wll enable permtted
charitable gamng organizations and operators to
present to the state biennial instead of the annual
reports currently required by |aw.

Currently both the State and gam ng operators nust
expend consi derabl e resources each Decenber to process
and prepare permts.

Changing to biennial reporting wll be nuch nore
efficient for everyone. The permittee currently
expends considerable resources to prepare each annua
permt application.

The State spends considerabl e resources exam ning each
permt application. The State |oses neither revenues,
nor enforcenment capability with this change.

HB 477 also amends AS 05.15.090 to include in the
departnment's detailed report containing a summary of
all reports required of permttees and operators.
This report nmust also include information concerning
any investigations or prosecutions undertaken by the
departnment of Public Safety or the Departnent of Law
as required under anended AS 05.15.010.

HB 477 also renpves the Al aska Adm nistrati ve Code AAC
160. 580( e)

This code refers to the allowable nunmber of bingo
ganes and limtations on the nunmber of bingo sessions
as well as a one hour break between bingo sessions.

This section was originally enacted to prevent the
"Bingo Wars", where conpeting organizations would
rai se pay-outs in order to conpete with other ganes.

This 60 mnute break is inconvenient, expensive and
i nefficient

Pl ayers must sit and wait for an hour
Bingo is a social event in many comunities

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- March 17, 2006



This mandatory halt disrupts the process as the
stoppage is in no way connected to the schedul es of
t he peopl e that gather together to play.

Renoving this section will allow operators to adjust
to the tenpo and schedul es of their custoners.

Wth regard to the Hour break - wutilities are being

run..the lights and the heat are still on, staff nust
wait while still getting paid, etc
The renoval of this section wll increase the

enjoynent for those participants in bingo and reduce
the costs associated with providing the service. Any
reduction of costs would benefit those charities that
deserve the proceeds.

MR. O HARE then inforned the conmttee of the three fiscal notes
from the following departnents: Departnent of Revenue,
Departnent of Public Safety, and the Departnent of Law.

3:38:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN rel ated his belief that changing from annual
reports to biennial reports neans that it wll take tw ce as
| ong to determ ne whether something inproper is occurring.

MR. O HARE related his understanding that the permttees will be
required to submt an annual summary report to the Departnent of
Revenue (DOR).

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD turned to the elimnation of the 60-
mnute tinme-out, which will result in nore ganbling and nore
revenues for the operators. He expressed his opposition to
anyt hi ng that expands ganbli ng.

ACTING CHAIR KOIT offered his wunderstanding that currently
operators can expand the nunber of sessions and ganmes, and
therefore he didn't believe this change would cause a great
degree of expansi on.

3:42:35 PM
JEFF PRATHER, Gaming Goup, Juneau Ofice, Tax D vision,
Departnent of Revenue, explained that the sessions are limted

to 35 games or $5,000 in payouts. There can be no nore than 4
sessions in a 24-hour period.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- March 17, 2006



ACTI NG CHAIR KOTT surmi sed then that no matter the |length of the
break between sessions, the ganbling can't be expanded beyond
the af orenmentioned restrictions.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD related his understanding that the
elimnation of the 60-mnute tinme-out allows the use of a bingo
gam ng machine. He inquired as to the pros and cons of such.

MR. PRATHER said that he didn't know anythi ng about bingo gam ng
machi nes being avail able between sessions. M. Prather related
his understanding that there are electronic bingo paper
machi nes, which are machines for which one can have numerous
cards that the machine can track

LARRY MEYERS, Deputy Director, Tax D vision, Department of
Revenue, explained that the traditional gane of bingo is often
played with paper, and therefore the hour break would allow
closure of the gane before the next gane. However, electronics
has sped up the process such that a player can purchase nore
games with electronic bingo paper. M. Meyers nentioned that
there has been sonme effort to bring in new types of nachines
that woul d all ow conti nuous play.

ACTING CHAIR KOIT asked if those nmachines allow ng continuous
pl ay woul d have to be approved by the departnent.

MR. MEYERS replied yes. He informed the commttee that the
departnment is constantly seeing new types of products that it
must review in order to determne whether they neet the
intention and the purpose of the gam ng statutes.

ACTING CHAIR KOTT opined that with technology, bingo sessions
have becone shorter over the years. However, the aforenentioned
restrictions remain.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG rel ated his understanding that Section 9
only annuls 15 AAC 160.580(e), and therefore the other
af orenentioned restrictions will remain in regul ation.

3:50: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN reiterated his concern regarding the change
fromthe annual to biennial report.

MR. MEYERS said that annual reports make the job easier for the
departnent, although it's nore paperworKk. Wth the biennial

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 17, 2006



report, the departnent wll have to rely on reports from
permttees and any action against an operator or his/her bond
will have to wait until the final report is filed, which could
take up to two years. The aforenentioned nakes the regulator's
job a bit nore difficult, especially if there is a conplaint. A
simlar situation will exist with the report fromthe certified
public accountants (CPAs). Therefore, the biennial report may
result in the departnment and other |aw enforcenent not being
able to act in as tinely a fashion when there are probl ens.

3:54:18 PM

ROBERT LOESCHER, Vice President, Juneau ANB Canmp 2, inforned the
commttee that ANB Canp 2 has charitable gamng permts under
which it operates in Juneau. M. Loescher related support for
HB 477. In regard to biennial reports, he explained that
currently during the | ast week of Decenber the charitable gam ng
entities have to re-file the entity's pernit application and put
together the year-end report. For charitable organizations,
whi ch  consi st of vol unt eers, the aforementioned is a
"pressurized tinme." The departnent receives all the reports and
applications at once, which he indicated places pressure on the
department as well. Therefore, biennial report was suggested.
He highlighted that the biennial reports don't negate the
quarterly reports the departnent receives from every charitable
gam ng organi zation nor does it elimnate the 1 percent fee to
the state. In fact, the fees would be paid two years in advance
under the current |egislation. The inpact on the departnent
woul d al so be |essened by staggering the year in which the re-
filing would occur for the applicant. In conclusion, M.
Loescher opined that this legislation would help charitable
gam ng by keeping the costs down while maintaining the quarterly
reporting and the 1 percent annual fee as well as the permt
application fee two years in advance.

3:58: 00 PM

ACTI NG CHAIR KOIT asked if the quarterly reports are simlar to
the full reports.

MR. LOESCHER explained that the quarterly report includes all
the aspects found in an annual summary report. The quarterly
report delineates the revenues gained and the activities of the
charity during that quarter. The annual report is nerely a
summary of the four quarter reports. He opined that under the
bi enni al report, the departnent will have nore tinme to deal with
the reporting from the charities than under the current yearly

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- March 17, 2006



reporting scenario. M. Loescher viewed this legislation as a
benefit to the state.

ACTING CHAIR KOIT surmised then that under HB 477, the
charitable gamng entities would submt a two-year report, which
woul d be a conpilation of the previous eight quarters. |If there
was an anonmaly in that quarterly report, the departnent could
anal yze and review it.

MR. LOESCHER confirmed Acting Chair Kott's understandi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN questioned why the annual report is required
if the quarterly reports are the sane.

MR. LCESCHER explained that the annual report conbines the
quarterly reports in a summary and is hel pful for the departnent
in regard to reporting to the |egislature about how nmuch revenue
it's making.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN commented that he would like to talk wth
the adm ni strati on about these reporting requirenents |ater.

4:01: 33 PM

MR. LOCESCHER noted that he worked with the sponsor's staff and
the departnment in regard to the necessary confornming statutory
changes, which are enconpassed in Version G He then went on to
relate the difficulty in investigating theft or enbezzlenent
within charitable ganing as well as the difficulty in being able
to prosecute the perpetrators and recover | osses. Ther ef or e,
the law should include provisions that allow charitable gam ng
officials to go the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS) and | oca

| aw enforcenent for investigation and prosecution, when
appropri ate. As a result of the inability to investigate and
prosecute cases, fidelity bond coverage is very limted and thus
the entity may only recover partially or not at all. Therefore,
M. Loescher requested that the legislature provide a provision
in the bill that would allow DPS and l|ocal |aw enforcenent to

i nvestigate, and when appropriate, prosecute cases of theft and
enbezzl enent .

MR. LCESCHER, in response to Acting Chair Kott, recalled that
recently a key enployee of ANB who nanaged the gam ng operations
enbezzl ed over $50, 000. Al relevant information was given to
| ocal |aw enforcenent, but to date there has been no action from
| ocal |aw enforcenent or the state. Mreover, the fidelity bond
conpany has only been willing to offer a small anpbunt against

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- March 17, 2006



the 1 oss. M. Loescher surmsed that |local |aw enforcenent
hasn't taken any action because this type of crime is a "low
priority." Furthernore, there is nothing in current statute
that provides DPS, the attorney general's office, or district
attorney authority to becone invol ved.

ACTING CHAIR KOIT asked if this type of crime would fall wunder
the jurisdiction of the state or |ocal authorities.

MR. LOESCHER opined that it falls under the jurisdiction of the
state because charities are enabled, authorized, and permtted
by state statute.

ACTING CHAIR KOTT inquired as to how many of these offenses M.
Loescher is aware. He expressed interest in determning how
many cases would be turned over to DPS to investigate in order
to determine the anount of tinme this would require of the
depart nments. This legislation, he highlighted, nandates that
DPS investigate these cases and the Departnent of Law prosecute
t he of fenders.

MR. LOESCHER estimated that perhaps there would be two to three
such cases in a five- to seven-year period. However, when it
happens a lot of noney is usually involved. He related his
understanding that the charities are wlling to gather
information for the local police, but these cases don't seemto
proceed past the local |aw enforcenent |evel. Those invol ved
haven't found any way to sue, which is why the state is being
requested to assist the charities dealing with theft and
enbezzl| enent .

4:11:58 PM

MR, LOESCHER reiterated the difficulties with regard to the one-
hour break that in charitable gam ng include incurring the cost
of the facility and the enployees during that break. Mor eover
it's an inconvenience to the customers. Furthernore, the reason
to have this regulation has dim nished. M. Loescher recalled
that the one-hour break was a rule that was the result of a
departnmental task force several years ago and thus he opined
that the departnment wouldn't be easily convinced to delete this
rule. Therefore, the legislature is being asked to do so.

4:17:47 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- March 17, 2006



STEPHEN  BORCHERDI NG, CGener al Manager , Gold Cache Bingo,
Anchorage, Al aska, paraphrased from the followwing witten
testinony and verbal additions [original punctuation provided]:

| amwiting this letter to express nmy concerns about
HB 477 and ask that you reconsider its introduction
and/ or your support for this bill. | can not foresee
any significant benefit to the <charities or the
regulators of this industry in its three Dbasic
sections. M concerns are as foll ows:

Publ i c Safety Requirenent

The Departnent of Revenue is already tasked with, and
is required to investigate any conplaints by the
industry or its consuners. HB 477 requires al
conplaints of theft or enbezzlenent to be handl ed by
the Departnent of Public Safety, and would elimnate
the investigative powers and duties of the Departnent
of Revenue, specifically the gamng unit, with regard
to theft.

Thef t and enbezzl enent are already under t he
jurisdiction of public safety. The departnent of
revenue does not have jurisdiction over these crimnal
acts, but it does have the ability to investigate the
clainms, build cases, utilize its judgnent and, based
on its expertise in this area, present its findings to
the proper authorities. Under HB 477 any conplaint of
theft or enbezzlenent, whether justified or not, wll
be imediately turned over to a departnent that does
not have the expertise or the resources to properly
i nvestigate these clains.

Additionally, section 5 of HB 477 provides for

essentially a "blotter report” of ongoi ng
i nvesti gations. Since the power of reasonable
j udgnment by the Departnent of Revenue is renoved, any
and al | conpl ai nt s, justified or not , about
organi zations, individuals, or operations wll show up
on this report. Ongoi ng operations and individuals

may be victimzed by erroneous conplaints, bad
publicity, or unscrupul ous conpetitors.

| am a huge proponent of keeping gamng free of

corruption, so | believe in keeping the investigative
powers in the hands of the experts.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 17, 2006



Bi enni al Reporting

The industry itself, for the nobst part, has mde it
clear that we are not in favor of |oosening
regulations or restrictions. W have continually
shown through our actions that we not only support
tighter regulations, we actually help the Departnent
of Revenue draft and inplenent them HB 477 not only
| oosens sone restrictions, it may actually pronote, or

open the door to large scale corruption. Bi enni al
reporting creates holes in the system that nay be
expl oi t ed.

According to the Departnent of Revenue, the mmjority
of issues investigated by the Gaming Unit are as a
direct result of current reporting requirenents. The
Gaming Unit's investigations or audits of reports are
the best tool they have for deterring illega
activity. More inportantly, according to the Gam ng
Unit these reports are used quite often to assist
permttees with their various gam ng activities. The
Gaming Unit routinely uses its reports to hel p educate
permttees on the rules and regulations, resulting in
a cleaner and nore profitable industry.

In addition, HB 477 does not nake provisions or change
other Statutes that may also be affected by biennial

reporting: Li censing, operator contracts, odd year
appl i cati ons, reports by self directed or VBP
organi zations, biennial State gam ng reports, as well
as the form dabl e anobunt of regulations that will have

to be re-witten.

The proponents of this bill have insisted that
biennial reporting wll relieve the Departnment of
Revenue of sonme of its burden. The bill, however,
only seens to apply to operators. There are only 22
operators in Alaska, and there are 1,200 tota
permttees. I do not see the significant relief of
bur den. In fact, this legislation would create nore

of a burden, according to the Departnent of Revenue.
And one of the things that was brought up on the
previous testinony was that quarterly reports are the
sane as the annual report, that is not conpletely
true. The annual report is an audited report by a
CPA, the quarterly reports are not. So, the annua

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- March 17, 2006



report may show differences that the quarterly reports
may not show.

| do not believe this section wll relieve the
Department of Revenue of any of its work |load and wll
nore than likely create additional work, especially in

the area of auditing. It will open up an avenue for
| arge scale corruption, especially in the hands of an
unscr upul ous oper at or and it wi | hi nder t he

departnment's ability to assist struggling charities.
And that's one of the parts of the departnment that
these reports help .... The Departnent of Revenue has
done a wonderful job of helping those charities,
through reading their reports, to be able to stay in
conpliance and becone profitable. The other thing |
would like to address on that section is that not all
charities are required or permts are required to file
guarterly reports, as was stated earlier. Only
permttees that have hit ... $50,000 a quarter are the
only ones that are required by law to turn in a
quarterly report. |If they don't do $50,000 or if they
don't report, now we're talking about two years where
a charity would not have to report because they could
just sinply claim that we weren't doing $50,000 a
guarter whether they were or were not. So, a two-year
scenario opens up several holes that |1'm not very
confortable with being in this industry.

One Hour Session Break

First of all this is not a statute. It is a
regul ati on. And this particular regulation was
i ntroduced and adopted at the request of the industry.
(An exanple of our commtnent to self-regulating)
This regulation was put in place to prevent the
exploitation of the Bingo session payout Ilimtations
of $5,000 per session.

Bingo halls, in the past would routinely offer
$10, 000, $15,000, $20,000 or nore sessions and claim
that they were sinply running sessions concurrently.

In addition to side stepping the spirit of the I|aw,

t hese concurrent sessi ons created an audi ting
nightmare for the non-profits and the State. The
conpetition to offer these large scale sessions and
the inevitable price wars that resulted from them

nearly destroyed Bi ngo operations in Anchorage.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- March 17, 2006



It is my understanding that this section of the bil
was included under the auspices that renote conmmunity
Bingo halls suffer because players do not want to wait
around for an hour to play again. In the 16 years |
have been in this industry and throughout ny extensive
travels to various villages and renote bingo halls, |
have never heard this conplaint. [If anything, | would
feel that the one-hour break between sessions gives
you an opportunity to make nore noney, either through
your snack bar sales, vending, pull-tab sales, and so
on and so forth.

The proponents of HB 477 and specifically section [9]
are pushing another agenda that opens the door for an
unprecedented expansion of Gam ng. If this section
passes, it wll nove us one step closer to the use of
Class Il electronic bingo nmachines, (SLOT MACH NES)
that could be played under the unbrella of concurrent
Bi ngo sessions, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. It is
my understanding that nachines of this nature are
already in Al aska, warehoused and ready to go and the
Department of Revenue has been continually pressured
to approve their use. Section 9 noves these nachines
alittle closer to the warehouse exit door. PLEASE DO
NOT BE FOOLED BY THE RHETORI C.

My opinions on this bill were fornmed after nunerous
conversations with my peers and others in the industry
and as a result of ny extensive experience in Al aska's

Charitable Gam ng |Industry. Al though | do not
represent all of the organizations. | do, however,
represent and speak on behalf of the several native
non- profit organi zations that I am tasked wth
managi ng.

Please help stop HB 477. | thank you for your

consi derati on.

4:26:42 PM

JACK PONERS par aphrased fromthe followng witten testinony:
| want to start by saying that | support Steve
Borcherding's testi nony 100% Bet ween hi s

organi zation and mnmne we probably represent the
| argest MBP and operator in Alaska. On that subject,

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- March 17, 2006



| would be interested to find out from the Departnent
of Revenue exactly out of the 22 operators--how many
| arge operators exist in the state? By large | nean
operators that are fully bonded and have contracts
with over four permttees. | would venture to guess
that there are very few

But back to HB 477, as far as involving the State
Troopers at the front end of gam ng investigations.
This bill, in essence, would nake it possible for
anyone to claim anything and the troopers would have
to investigate. They would have no choice. A sinple
phone call from an "anonynous"” caller would require an
investigation if this passes, regardless of whether
the claimseens credible or not.

Not to nention that the key regulator involved in
gam ng, the Departnent of Revenue, may not even be in
the loop before an investigation is initiated by a
secret call or email to troopers. The Departnment of
Revenue are the experts in gam ng. On the other hand
the State Troopers are not as inforned about gam ng
laws and individuals in the gamng industry as the
departnment--so it seens that this bill puts the cart
before the horse.

Moreover, the bill supposedly intends to 'clean up
gamng' wth these provisions, but then at the sane
time | oosens all the reporting requirenents upon which
prosecution woul d depend. There is nothing to stop an
unscr upul ous I ndi vi dual from intentionally not
reporting via quarterly reports and then have two
years before the departnment could catch any m st akes.

Sonme are saying that the annual audits are just too
time consumng and expensive for nost charities.
Vell, they wuld be just as expensive if done
“bi annual | y" rather than annually. The auditor would
charge by the anmount of work, so two years worth of
audits would cost tw ce as nuch.

Also, | see renoving the hour break in between bingo
sessions as a mstake in many ways. Bingo players use
that hour in various ways--they grab a bite to eat,
play pull-tabs or socialize with friends. Wthout the
hour break | can see business running bingo non-stop,
24 hours a day. It opens the door to setting up bingo

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- March 17, 2006



machi nes which could be set up anywhere. | can see
bi ngo machines set up next to pull-tab kiosks in the
m ddl e of the mall.

VWiile | appreciate the intent of HB 477, because of
the manner in which it is witten, it will create nore
issues that it will solve.

MR. POWNERS then turned to M. Loescher's testinony and said that
he doesn't know of any operator who hasn't received the permt,

even a tenporary one, to operate. Wth regard to the annual
report, M. Powers characterized it as easy since it's nerely a
conpilation of the quarterly reports. Mor eover, the annual
report isn't due until March, which provides plenty of tinme for
CPA review. He nentioned that the annual report, wunlike the
quarterly report, nust be acconpanied by an independent CPA
revi ew. In conclusion, M. Powers opined that running a full-
scale operation such as bingo hall necessitates having

i ndependent operators, conptrollers, and caneras in the ceiling
as it's a fairly large business.

4:34: 00 PM

ACTING CHAIR KOTT inquired as to how one could have bingo ganes
24 hours a day 7 days a week under HB 477 when there wll
continue to exist restrictions with regard to the nunber of
sessions, prizes, and ganmes that can be played.

MR. PONERS replied that up to 35 bingo ganes per session and
four sessions a day are allowed. Therefore, if one offered 35
bl ackout s/ cover alls, which can last up to an hour, could result

in play for 35 hours. In response to conments regarding the age
of the clientele at bingo halls, M. Powers related that a
younger crowd is comng on Friday and Saturday nights. He

asked, "Wuldn't you rather have young people sitting in a nice
cl ean, drug-free bingo hall with no al cohol than being up around
the corner at a bar?"

4:37:17 PM

GREGORY  PETERSOQON, Cener al Manager , Al aska | ndoor Sports
Distributing, related his belief that the Gamng Unit does a
great job enforcing the rules and regulations of the gamng
i ndustry, and therefore no change is necessary. Therefore, any
mandate to review or investigate should remain within the Gam ng
Unit. Furthernore, the Departnment of Revenue should review
licenses and permttees on an annual basis because this is one

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- March 17, 2006



of the few cases in which the Gaming Unit can review for
conpl i ance. He characterized it as a "good solid process" that
shoul dn' t change. M. Peterson highlighted that this
| egislation only covers operators, of which there are only 22
while there are 1,200 permttees. Wth regard to the reporting,
he opined that the quarterly reports are very general for which
there is no reconciliation process or bank statenents provided
whereas annual reports require a nore rigorous process that is
nmore than a conpilation of quarterly reports. M. Peterson
opi ned that he doesn't want to "go backwards." He stated that
the gamng industry has always been in favor of tighter
regul ations, while this legislation | oosens existing regulations
from which the gam ng industry wouldn't benefit. He then turned
to the proposal to renove the one-hour break between sessions
and characterized it as creating a "loophole" to expand gam ng
in the state. Furthernore, in the 10 years he has worked with
the permttees across the state he said that he has never heard
any conplaints about the one-hour break. In conclusion, M.
Pet erson urged the commttee not to pass HB 477 from conm tt ee.

4:41:24 PM

LI EUTENANT JAMES HELGOE, Division of Alaska State Troopers,
Department of Public Safety, directed the commttee's attention
to the new | anguage in Section 1 of HB 477, which is of concern.
As witten, it would rmake the Division of Al aska State Troopers
the investigating agency for all thefts and enbezzlenent by a
permttee, operator, enployee, or consuner regardless of |ocal
police jurisdiction or the credibility of the conplaint.
Therefore, DPS, he related, believes it would be better to have
exi sting local |aw enforcenent agencies along wth Departnent of
Revenue task force to investigate such alleged crimnal
m sconduct . The Departnment of Public Safety would investigate
when asked and when there is no | ocal |aw enforcenent agency.

4:43: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG inquired as to whether a |ocal
jurisdiction can enforce state | aw.

LI EUTENANT HELGOE replied that local |aw enforcenment agencies
enforce state statute on a regul ar basis.

4:43: 46 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- March 17, 2006



ACTI NG CHAIR KOTT noted that there was no quorum to take action
on the |Ilegislation. He then closed public testinony and
announced that HB 477 woul d be held over.

4:45: 22 PM

HB 51- EMPLOYER ASSN FOR WORKERS' COWP | NS

ACTING CHAIR KOTT announced that the final order of business
woul d be SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 51, "An Act
relating to nodifying the qualifications required for workers'
conpensation self-insurance and permitting enployers in the sane
trade or industry to form an enployer association for self-
insured workers' conpensation coverage; and providing for an
effective date.”

M KE PAWOWSKI, Staff to Representative Kevin Myer, Sponsor,
noted that during the last bill hearing, the nenbers adopted
commttee substitute (CS) 24-LS0233\S, Bailey, 3/3/06, as the
wor ki ng docunent and the nmenbers were waiting for testinony from
the director of the Division of Insurance. He said that letters
of support from the State Chanber of Commerce and the Al aska
Chapter of the National Electrical Contractors Association had
been added to nenbers' packets.

4:47:07 PM

LINDA HALL, Director, Division of Insurance, Departnent of
Commerce, Conmunity, & Econom ¢ Devel opnent, said that one of
the basic principles of insurance regulation is financial
oversight to ensure that clainms are paid. She stated that while
[Version S] includes nore detailed requirenents, she still has
concerns regarding the bottom line repercussions of insolvency.
She said that M. Pawl owski had indicated adding a new term
"tangi bl e net worth," and she stated that there is no definition
[in current statute]. She explained that insurance regulation
limts the types and value of assets in determining an insurer's
financial position, adding that the quality of assets and
liquidity is a concern.

4:49:13 PM

MS. HALL said that she feels the $5 mllion net worth aggregate
is "excessively low" She noted that the Departnent of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnent's projection, which 1is adjusted for
inflation, is approximately $10 nmillion. She said that the CS
also requires a solvency bond, which she is not sure is

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- March 17, 2006



practical. She noted that she has spoken to a bond underwriter
who is active in the Al aska bond market, and was informed that
this would be very difficult to obtain because the individua
enpl oyers who woul d be nenbers of the association have not been
required to provide audited financial statenents in the past.
She stated that requiring the association to be the principle on
the bond would require a corporate signer who is wlling to
i ndemi fy the bonding conpany, and she opined that it would be
difficult to find an enployer in the association wlling to take
on this responsibility.

4:50: 41 PM
V. HALL expressed concern that the bill pl aces prinmary

financial responsibility on the association, and added that in
general, trade associations do not have the financial assets to

provide the workers' conpensation benefits. In regard to the
term nation of nmenbership, she said that Version S does not
address what happens to the liabilities for the tinme the

enpl oyer was a nenber of the association. She said that there
is a section which deals wth insufficient assets and the
circunstances in which an association would be considered
i nsolvent; however, there is no provision dealing with what
happens afterward. She stated that the 36-nonth tine period for
retention of the security deposit is not a sufficient length of
time, as sone workers' conpensation clainms can take up to 20
years to close. She suggested that it may be nore appropriate
to condition the release of the deposit upon termnation of
liabilities as determ ned by actuarial analysis.

4:52:45 PM

M5. HALL went on to say that Version S would not allow the
statutes controlling wunfair discrimnation, msrepresentation
and fal se advertising, and unfair clains settlenent practices to
apply to the self-insured associations. She stated that while
the division currently licenses adjusters who handl e workers'
conpensation clains, Version S does not require the third party
admnistrator be licensed as an adjuster, and therefore would
not provide any oversight of the clains handling practices. She
added that there is no conplaint process or authority to require
accountability for the handling of clains.

4:54:16 PM

M5. HALL noted that the majority of the bill is based on Nevada
statute and regulation, although sone significant provisions

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- March 17, 2006



have not been included. These include: The indemity agreenent
includes the association; annual assessnents nust be at |east
$300,000 or an amount determined by the director to be
satisfactory based on an annual review of actuarial solvency

each nenber of the association nust have a tangible net worth of
at | east $250,000 and a mninum premum for wor ker s’
conpensation insurance of at |east $10,000; the director would
approve annual assessnents; provisions are nade to assess other
self-insured associations for the <clainms obligations of an
i nsol vent associ ati on. She noted that in the Nevada
regul ations, there are provisions regarding the assessnent of
other self-insured associations for clains obligations once a

menber beconmes insolvent. She said "I'mstill concerned, if one
of these self-insured groups becones insolvent, sonebody's going
to have to pay, and | think we ... need to talk about who that
is.”

4:55:56 PM

M5. HALL stated that AS 21.75 provides for the formation of
reci procal i nsurers, which she feels would achieve the
obj ectives of the proposed self-insured association program In

conclusion, she stated that while she is pleased to see the
efforts to include nore accountability, she continues to have
reservations about the viability of the small plans when there
is potential to have insufficient funds with which to pay the
clainms of injured workers. She urged the conmittee to consider
the possible effects of the bill. She said that the bill has
been crafted by an Alaska trade group in an attenpt to find a
viable alternative and renmain responsible; however, the bil
woul d apply to any group who decided to participate. She added
that other groups my not have the sane principals of
accountability that may be looking for a way to "skinp" on
wor kers' conpensation costs.

4:58: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if M. Hall could provide her
witten concerns to the nenbers.

M5. HALL said yes and added that her office would al so provide a
conparison of the current and previous versions.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the net worth requirenment would
remain at $5 million if a reciprocal was forned.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- March 17, 2006



M5. HALL replied that there is no net worth requirenent. She
said that there are capital and surplus requirenents for
reci procal, which begin at $1.5 nmillion and are required to have
$1, 375,000 in capital and surplus.

5:00: 18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked where the $5 million figure cane
from

M5. HALL replied that this anmount is from the current workers'
conpensation statutes and is the mninum requirenent for an
i ndi vidual enployer to be considered for a self-insurance
certificate.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG referring to M. Hall's testinony,
asked if the amount would be twice as nuch if adjusted for
inflation.

M5. HALL replied that her testinony was based on information
recei ved from Director Li sanki e. She expressed her
understanding that this was pronul gated in 1983.

5:01: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG, in regard to the issue of insolvency,
asked if there is any link between this and the guaranty funds.

M5. HALL said no, and added that she does not think there should
be. She suggested inplenenting a nethod for determ ning what
would occur in case of an insolvency, as soneone would be
required to pay. She stated that when the guaranty fund runs
out of noney to pay for clains, the responsibility is then
pl aced on the individual enployer; however, if the individual
enpl oyer is bankrupt, there is little course of action for the
i njured enpl oyee.

5:03: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there are currently other
provi sions under certified self-insured or reciprocal.

M5. HALL replied that there are no provisions under Title 23 for

certified self-insured, and she added that the reciprocals fal
under the guaranty associ ation.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- March 17, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the reciprocals pay into the
guaranty fund.

M5. HALL said yes.
5:03: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there are any provisions in the
bill that provide for assessnents of the guaranty fund.

M5. HALL said no, and opined that unless the division is dealing
with a "level playing field*, it would be unfair to include
self-insurers in the sane guaranty fund as the insured market.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG agreed with this and asked about the
joint and several liability.

M5. HALL explained that in the CS, the joint and several
liability agreenment is between the nenbers and does not extend
to the association; however, the association is required to pay
for the workers’ conpensation benefits for the nenbers’
enpl oyees. She noted that in the Nevada statutes and
regul ations, the association is included in the joint and
several liability agreenent.

5:05:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked for an exanple to further clarify
how t hi s works.

M5. HALL offered her understanding that joint and several
liability neans that, if an association has five enployers and
one enployer files for bankruptcy, the remaining enployers nust
then take over the bankrupt enployer's obligations to the group,
in addition to their own. She said that one of the "prine
concepts” of this type of arrangenent is that each nenber agrees
to be responsible for the other nenbers and take on the
financial responsibility of the other nenbers. She stated that
if the association is not included and yet is responsible for
paynent, the five nmenbers are not required to pay for the
obl i gati ons of the association.

5:06: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the bill is witten to nake
associ ation responsi bl e.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- March 17, 2006



M5. HALL replied that she is not sure how the financial
responsi bility woul d take pl ace.

5:07:01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD asked if the bill contains a provision
to protect the group against individual bankruptcy.

MS. HALL surm sed that this was the intent of the sol vency bond;
however, this may not be practical. She stated that bankruptcy
is a financial risk and not an insurance risk, therefore it is
not typically the subject of insurance. She said that the self-
i nsured association can purchase excess insurance, which 1is
required by the bill.

5:08: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there is a way to prove wth
docunent ati on that sol vency bonds are avail abl e.

M5. HALL replied that she does not know.
5:09: 50 PM

ACTING CHAIR KOIT asked how "the director may issue a self-
i nsurance certificate" as specified on page 1 of the CS versus
page 5, which reads "the director shall issue a self-insurance
certificate."

M5. HALL expressed her understanding that the sponsor would Iike
to change the "shall" on page 5 of the CSto "may."

ACTING CHAIR KOIT asked if M. Hall would prefer "may" to
"shal . "

M5. HALL replied that "may" would allow sone discretion, which
woul d be preferable. She added that the discretion would need
to be based on factual information.

5:11: 51 PM

PAUL F. LISANKIE, Director, Central Ofice, D vision of Wrkers

Conpensation, Departnent of Labor & Wrkforce Developnent, in
regard to an earlier question, said that the $5 mllion net
worth anmount is in the current board regul ations. He stated
that the board requested that the regul ations be updated, and in
response to this, he plans to suggest raising this anmount to $10

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- March 17, 2006



mllion to reflect the passage of time and inflation. He said
that current regulations require security bonds to be a mninmm
of $300,000 and this would change to $600,000 if adjusted for
inflation.

ACTING CHAIR KOIT asked if there is a definition of "tangible
net worth"™ in the current regul ations or statutes.

MR. LISANKIE replied that there is a definition of "net tangible
assets.”

5:14: 08 PM

ACTING CHAIR KOIT asked if there is a difference between
"tangi bl e net worth" and "net tangible assets."”

MR. LI SANKIE replied that he would hesitate to say no.
5:14: 39 PM

MR. LISANKIE, in response to a question from Representative
Rokeberg, said that the board regulations give the entity that
is required to post the security several options regardi ng what
is utilized to post a security. He stated that these options
include: a letter of credit, purchasing a security bond, and a
certificate of deposit.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if this is this equivalent to what
the CS refers to as a "security deposit."

5:16: 19 PM

MR. LISANKIE said it may be, and added that the CS gives the
director a fair amount of |eeway to decide what is a sufficient
security. He referred to the testinmony from Ms. Hall and said
that the bonds that are <collected are retained to cover
liabilities after the enployer is no longer a self-insured
enpl oyer, and he noted that this is not always utilized by the
wor kers'  conpensation board. He opined that this is a
"weakness" in the division.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if this is the $300,000 in current
regul ati on.

MR. LISANKIE replied that the $300,000 is the security for an

on- goi ng operation. He said that there is a provision that
allows the board to retain a simlar security bond in the event

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 24- March 17, 2006



that the enployer ceases to be an independent insurer. He
stated that this is not currently required, which he does not
believe is a "good" thing. He said that the regulations were
devel oped for large entities, and opined that the belief at that
time was that a large entity was not at risk of becom ng
insolvent. He said that he does not believe this to be correct,
and remarked that if a large conpany |oses enough noney it can
"fall just like anybody el se.™

5:18:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if, in regard to the length of
time and anmount [of the security deposit], the CS is nore
"forward thinking" than the current regul ations.

MR. LISANKIE replied that this aspect is an inprovenent from
what is currently being done with |large self-insurers.

ACTI NG CHAI R KOTT cl osed public testinony.
5:19: 24 PM

ACTING CHAIR KOTT asked if the annual audits are reported back
to the division,

M5. HALL surmised that the audits are sent to the director of
the division, although this is not specifically stated in the
CsS.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG agreed with this, and remarked that it
woul d be good to specify where the audits are sent.

MR. PAW.OWBKI pointed out that the audits are required when the
certificate is granted, and added that the CS contains a
provision which allows the director to audit the books at the
expense of the association. He added that the CS gives the
director regulation authority, and said that the sponsor | ooks
forward to working with the director to develop the system
correctly.

5:23: 06 PM

ROBERT VOGAL, Vice President of Operations, Goup Mnager, Pro
G oup Managenent, Inc., said that the annual audits are handl ed
by the group which is subject to the audit. He stated that the
CS does not specify this and said that this "could be cleaned
up. " He explained that the aforenentioned audits are intended

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 25- March 17, 2006



to ensure that the correct classification, correct payroll, and

assessnments are collected. He said that if the conpany is
deficient, it wll be sent a bill from the association, and if
t he conpany has over paid, it will receive a refund.

MR. PAW.OASKI pointed out that page 10, lines 4-25 is the annua
statenent of financial condition.

5:24:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Vogal if he is aware of any
provisions from the Nevada structure that are not included in
t he CS.

MR. VOGAL replied that the sections that are not included are
part of the Nevada adm nistrative code, not in the regulations.
He stated that the CS sets out the framework for the director to
adopt regul ations to inplenment the provisions.

MR, VOGAL, in response to a question, said that if a self-
insured group is insolvent, the director can require the group
to assess it's nmenbers for the additional assets. He stated

that the solvency bonds are generally available through excess
carriers. He said that this is an additional protection that is
used wuntil the group has enough assets. He stated that
currently, of the groups that PGM nanages, the highest retention
is $750, 000. He said that the builders group has a $500, 000
retention, adding that nost excess carriers will not go below
this anount. He explained that the intent of the self-insured
group is to grow and add strong, solvent nenbers. He said that
this would result in less inpact if one nenber filed for
bankr upt cy. He added that if there 1is enough regulatory
oversight, there wll be enough collected in advance to cover
the projected liabilities.

5:29:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG nmade a notion to adopt Amendnent 1,
whi ch read [original punctuation provided]:

To page 1 line 14 insert "tangible" followng "a
before "net worth."

There being no objection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG nmade a notion to adopt Amendnent 2,
whi ch read [original punctuation provided]:

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 26- March 17, 2006



To Page 5 line 5 replace "shall"™ with "my" to make
consistent wwth page 1 line 1.

There being no objection, Anmendnent 2 was adopt ed.
The conmittee took a brief at-ease.
5:31:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to report CSSSHB 51, Version 24-
LS0233\S, Bailey, 3/3/06, as anended, out of conmittee wth
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSSSHB 51(L&C) was reported from the
House Labor and Commrerce Standi ng Comrittee.

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
5:31:58 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -27- March 17, 2006



